
1 
 

 

  
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Meeting to be held at the 

Casitas Board Room 
1055 Ventura Ave. 

Oak View, CA 93022 
May 23, 2018 @ 3:00 P.M. 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 
5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 
6. Consent Agenda. 
 

a. Minutes of the May 9, 2018 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Great Western 

Recreation in the amount of $30,307.50 for the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area Teapot Playground Resurfacing. 

 
7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 5/03/18 - 

5/15/18. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report. 
 
 



2 
 

8. Request of Sharon Brown for reversal of Allocation Penalty, Consumption 
and reimbursement for Plumber Repairs. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 
 
9. Consideration of action on Water Exchange between Casitas Municipal 

Water District, City of Ventura and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 

a) Make the findings that the exchange of State Water Project Table A 
water is exempt from environmental review under California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Water Code section 
1729, State CEQA Guidelines sections 15282(u), 15301, and 15061 
(b)(3);  and  

b) Approve the Agreement between San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
and the City of San Buenaventura and Casitas Municipal Water District 
for the exchange of 2018 State Water Project Table A water;  and 

c) Authorize the General Manager to sign the Agreement and to make 
any nonmaterial changes to the final version of the Agreement, subject 
to review by legal counsel; 

d) Approve by resolution the Preliminary Assessment and direct staff to 
file a Notice of Exemption;  and 

e) Authorize staff to develop and execute any agreements or 
documentation which may be required by the Department of Water 
Resources for this transaction;  and 

f) Designate the monetary funds received by Casitas from San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency to a reserve account that is dedicated to Casitas’ 
water security projects. 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt items a-f 
 
10. Recommend authorization to enter into professional services agreements 

for on-call engineering consultants for fiscal year 2018-19. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
11. Recommend approval of the change order to Consulting West in the 

amount of $24,550 to add architectural and structural design services for 
Rincon Pump Plant Building Modification. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 



3 
 

12. Recommend approval of authorization of the General Manager to enter 
into professional services agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc., Padre 
Associates, Inc., and Dudek for cultural resources on-call services for 
fiscal year 2018-2019. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
13. Presentation by Julia Aranda, Engineering Manager on Ojai Water System 

conditions. 
   
14. Budget Workshop for Initial Review of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2018-

2019 Budget including Revenue, Expenses and Capital Projects. 
  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 
 
15. Resolution scheduling a public hearing on June 27, 2018 to hear input 

from the public on the adoption of the proposed fiscal year 2018-2019 
Budget. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
16. Resolution canceling the July 11, 2018 Board Meeting. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
17. LAFCo Ballot for the Independent Special Districts Countywide Oversight 

Board. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving a vote 
  
18. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Monthly Status Report for April 2018. 
b. Recreation Area Report for March 2018. 
c. Executive Committee Minutes. 
d. Finance Committee Minutes. 
e. Water Conservation April 2018 Report 
f. ACWA Spring Conference Report. 
g. Letter from the Department of Water Resources regarding Urban 

Water Management Plan Requirements Addressed. 
h. Investment Report. 
 

19. Adjournment. 
 
If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please 
notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 
and 54954.2(a)). 



1 
 

  
 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

May 9, 2018 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors was held May 9, 2018 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. President Word led the group in the 
flag salute.  
 
1. Roll Call 
 

Directors Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks and Word were present.  Also 
present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the 
Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were five staff members and 26 
members of the public in attendance.   
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Bobbi Corbin an Ojai resident and business owner and member of the Ojai 
planning commission asked to hear from the Board and Steve Wickstrum on a 
continual basis a mission statement, if you will, on the agenda of every meeting 
that addresses a short term, mid-range and long term plan for dealing with water 
management in this valley.  It does not seem this board is alarmed by the state of 
the lake.  We would like to know the secret agenda if you have one.  The Three 
Sister’s Project seems doable in the near future and while there are many steps, 
a county-wide cooperation on water management seems crucial so everybody 
has a stake together in solving this problem. 
 

Eugene Rooke spoke about the Brown Act and provided a copy of the 
Calleguas Water District agenda and stated that written communications from the 
public are required by 8:30 the Thursday prior to meeting to be on the agenda 
and be considered.  You don’t do this.  At the last meeting the attorney said you 
can ask for things to be on the agenda and they were not.  Have the Three 
Sister’s Project considered. Put on the agenda to engage a feasibility study for 
facilities needed to move water up here. You need transparency, you work for us.  
It is impossible to get items addressed that we want addressed.  Help.  Adopt a 
Brown Act plan like Calleguas.  Go to their meetings and find out how they greet 
people before the meeting.  It is amazing what open doors they have for the 
public and you don’t do that.  Then Mr. Rooke provided his wife’s comment on 
the Urban Water Management Plan.  In the 2015 plan you said things Casitas 
does not anticipate future infrastructure projects through 2040.  You plan to use 



2 
 

demand management programs and safe yield to balance water supply with 
demand.  And use additional demand management measures.  You are going to 
continue to support the water use allocation program.  There is no desal, 
transfers or exchanges thru 2040.  You did not anticipate new infrastructure 
projects.  That is what you said and are committed to it.  A letter from Steve 
Wickstrum to Jordan Kear dated one month later you asked him to do some 
more studies for water and infrastructure.  What happened to all of a sudden you 
ask for ideas.  You the board along with Steve came up with a list of projects.  
Why the change? 
 

Trina Grantham commented on the tragedy of the water supply and the 
finite watershed with the demand overwhelming the supply.  Conservation that 
has improved since 2014 is not enough.  Customers are frustrated and the lake 
is drying up. You need to think short and long term.  If items are implemented 
valley wide it would be an improved situation.  You must take the lead. Increased 
promotion of laundry to landscape, recirculation pumps, kitchen sink foot pedals,  
moratorium on new water meters, increased penalties going over allotment,  
moratorium on pools and adding covers.  Please put in with each bill info and 
incentives to save water. Perhaps there could be rewards for being under 
allocation.  Provide discounts on the purchase and installation of water saving 
devices.  Fast track the long term solutions. Put the ideas on the agenda and 
discuss.  Be more progressive and aggressive.  Remember every drop counts. 
 

Robin Gerber, Ojai resident told the board they are elected to govern over 
our water.  You are a special district.  People don’t understand what that is. It is 
the most local form of government.  Special District are accountable to voters 
and rate payers.  Boards are elected by district voters and accountable to us.  
You are not operating with transparency and accountability required of a 
government agency.  As such, holding meetings at the most inconvenient time is 
not what a government agency should do.  Calleguas holds meetings at the end 
of the work day.  Your agenda fails to meet requirements of the Brown Act.  
There is no specificity.  Take a look at other agendas.  How am I supposed to 
know what you are talking about?  There is a failure to discuss the three sister’s 
plan on the agenda.  Why not? You fail to make the process transparent. I can’t 
find the code of CMWD that governs your administration and actions.  Meetings 
are not videotaped but they are today and the public can see it.  Public elected 
officials are subject to recall to ensure you act with the professionalism and 
integrity we expect from elected officials. 
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 

None. 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 

Director Hicks reported that he only used two units of water last month.  
He then mentioned that Ron Merckling who has been our Public Affairs and 



3 
 

Water Conservation Manager for the last 15 years has taken another job in San 
Bernardino adding we have lost one of the best employees this district has ever 
had. 
 
5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Baggerly attended the VRWC meeting and there were a number 
of presentations including removal of Matilija Dam and a report from the county 
on the General Plan update. There is opportunity to comment on that process if 
you go to VC2040.org. 
 

Director Hicks added a response to the public comment regarding the 
meeting times that we did change our times to 6:00 p.m. on two different 
occasions for a period of time and we did not have any more people to come to 
those meetings. We have tried that in the past. 
 
6. Consent Agenda.       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the April 25, 2018 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of an agreement with Pueblo Water Resources 

in the amount of $12,300 for the Ojai Wellfield Operational 
Assessment. 

 
Director Baggerly asked to pull item a, the minutes, for discussion.  

Director Baggerly then offered item b which was seconded by Director Kaiser 
and approved by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 

  NOES: Directors: None 
 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
 
Regarding item a, Director Baggerly read from page six of the minutes 

April 25th meeting under the General Managers update on the Water Security 
Projects.  “State Water Intertie.  The City of Ventura is the lead agency and a 
Notice of Preparation for the EIR asked for public comment through March 30.  
Kennedy Jenks is preparing the environmental document for the first phase.  This 
is looking at a pipeline in starting in Spanish Hills and ending in Saticoy.  It is 
projected to go through farm lands; it is good to move the project off of the main 
roadways.  There is positive movement in design of the pipeline. This is in 
process and we expect the CEQA to be out in the next six months.  We have 
held staff level meetings on the east/west interconnection with the City of 
Ventura. They were looking at it for their own benefit to take care of a large 
portion of the city within the Casitas district. There is opportunity and it has been 
expressed to others, there is opportunity to think of a county wide regional plan 
for emergencies and water deliveries. We are looking for something larger than 
what the city looked for as a 24 inch line.  Kennedy Jenks is working with 



4 
 

Calleguas for emergency supply and the potential supplies for West County to 
serve their populations with eyes on potential to use the Lake Casitas supply. 
This would act as a sort of insurance for Calleguas.  For movement east to west 
and west to east we need to have a solution other than the 24 inch line that 
would be adequate for that type of operation. This project is ongoing right now.”   
 

The minutes were offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and adopted by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 

  NOES: Directors: None 
 ABSENT: Directors: None 

 
7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 4/19/18 - 

5/02/18.        APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly the 
Accounts Payable Report was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
8. 2018 Water Supply and Demand Status. 
 

a. Presentation by Jordan Kear regarding the Status of the Ojai 
Groundwater Basin. 
 

Jordan Kear provided a status of the Ojai Groundwater Basin discussing 
the hydrograph depth of water over many years.  The basin is at 63% with 
53,550 acre feet in storage with the target extraction being 3,000 acre feet a 
year. The fires have had a profound effect on groundwater and surface water 
systems. The fine sediment decreases infiltration capacity, coats the stream 
bottoms and there is a decreased ability for recharge.  Even with dry years and 
longest periods of drought the Ojai basin has the capacity to recharge quickly.  
Droughts usually don’t lost longer than 5-6 years in the hydrographs.  This basin 
will continue to breath. 

 
President Word explained to the public that we are continuing to 

investigate sources of water in the Matilija formation.  This project could provide 
local emergency water supply.  The preliminary schedule is two years. Regarding 
the State Water intertie, we are diligently pursuing this with Calleguas, the City of 
Ventura and United Water Conservation District. There are four parties, not 
three.  This is a five-seven year implementation.  On the Ojai Basin desalter this 
project will require further study to determine the merits of the project. Director 
Baggerly added that because Casitas obtained the Golden State service area 
this presentation today by Jordan should become familiar to you. We are very 
much involved in the Ojai basin and groundwater management.  I sit on the 



5 
 

OBGMA board and Casitas and OBGMA will be working in the future on a 
conjunctive use agreement on how to best operate conjoined water supplies for 
the area. 

 
On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly the 

presentation was received by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
b. Recommend revisions to the Water Efficiency Allocation Program. 
c. Recommendation to continue the Declaration of a Stage 3 Water 

Supply Condition. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum discussed the Water Supply and Demand Status and 
recommended changes to the Water Efficiency Allocation Program and the 
recommendation to remain at the declaration of a State 3 Water Supply 
Condition at this time. 

 
There was discussion about further defining what Stage 4 and 5 mean and 

defining when there might be a significant change to Agriculture. 
 

Richard Hajas reminded the board that he had sent you all a formal copy 
of comments earlier but added he would not read that to you.  Today’s discussion 
on supply and demand assessment was good.  It gives us a summary on policies 
and positions and your focus on short term emergency.  The sole formal policy 
adopted on this is your water efficiency and allocation program.  That is your 
policy.  You do discuss investigation of other water supplies.  You have not set 
goals; there is no formal plan, or objectives and time line to move forward.  You 
are just discussing.  It is a risky way to manage our water supply.  The time is 
now, conditions are changing.  There is abundant data that another drought is on 
the way.  We are not facing a short term problem.  It is unreasonable to have 
plans on the best case scenario.  Plan for what is reasonable and predictable.  
Droughts are predictable.  You have had success at dramatically reducing water 
demands and experiencing climate change.  Now is a good time for change.  He 
asked what is the minimum lake storage level to address emergency supply and 
based on the success of the water conservation efforts what are the true annual 
water needs and how much water is needed to meet the needs? Without 
answers you cannot evaluate.  Planning for drought is good water management 
in Southern California. You need to know how much water you can depend on in 
the future.  Begin discussions to address long term needs and don’t leave the 
problem to your successors.   
 

Eugene Rooke questioned Jordan Kear regarding his numbers and if it is 
potable.  Mr. Mathews suggested that Mr. Rooke address his comments to the 
board and Director Bergen asked that Mr. Rooke be allowed to ask questions of 



6 
 

Mr. Kear.  Mr. Rooke has asked if  the 53,550 acre feet is a recoverable number.  
It could be 25% less.  Only 40,000 af.  Your comment said what we produce may 
also not be potable. Director Baggerly added he does not see the relevance as 
the amount of pumping is at 3,000 Af and suggested that he bring his questions 
to the OBGMA meeting on the 24th. Mr. Rooke asked what portion of that number 
does Casitas control?  Maybe 1,000 – 1,500 af per year.  Mr. Rooke responded   
I was left with the impression that Casitas operates wells that could produce the 
entirety of 5,000 af per year.  Director Baggerly responded I think you are 
mistaken.  Everyone has the right to use the water over which they overlay.  
Casitas is a bit different but there is a restriction on the amount of pumping that 
can go on in the commons.  Casitas does not control the 5,000 af.  Mr. Rooke 
responded it is called rule of capture.  He then said that Mr. Kear said in 
discussing the Matilija formation that is different. It is different than alluvial 
formations in the Ojai basin.  It is prehistoric formation where the water does not 
flow. It is trapped.  Are you going to frack it? He mentioned Mr. Wickstrum telling 
him to look up the Chismahoo well. It was drilled 1,800 feet higher.  They hit 
formation at 7,550 feet.  No one asked the question what did that well produce?  I 
haven’t found that production information.  Mr. Wickstrum responded that I did 
not recommend that and have no recall of that.  Mr. Rooke said the Chismahoo 
Well is mentioned in Jordan Kear’s report to you in 2016.  That is where that well 
reference came from. 
 

Bert Rapp General Manager of Ventra River Water voiced support to 
remain at Stage 3 and the recommendation to look at it closer to October is the 
proper way to go forward.  Table 5 and changing non-essential use we think that 
is an excellent approach.  Our customers are at 40% conservation and are 
achieving the goal to get demand down.  We are doing 40%. We support those 
staff recommendations. Putting on my customer of Casitas hat, I would suggest 
that you define what an unavoidable leak is and not charge the customer the full 
cost of water for the leak especially the conservation penalty that throws salt in 
the wound for a leak that they diligently repaired.  They are conscientious water 
users distraught over the loss of water.   
 

George Galgas, Oak View resident expressed that he really enjoyed 
Jordan’s presentation and think that the public is not aware of when he talks 
about what the alluvial zone is. He asked that it be explained. The next thing is 
on mandatory cutbacks and allocations.  Are you going to put a moratorium on 
parks?  You are asking for conservation from us but they have free range of all 
the water that they need. 
 

Laura Moore asked about using of water from the sanitation plant.  A lot of 
communities are doing that.   

 
Robin Gerber said your materials is all about the demand side.  We have 

done our part.  We are conserving.  The public is responding.  What we are 
saying is are you doing your part?  Are you finding supply somewhere else?  
Why not put the three sister plan on the agenda to discuss for supply.  Why not 



7 
 

put the hobo or verbo plan to discuss if we want to spend the money and if there 
is water there.  Is there water?  Why are we not talking about that today?  There 
is a lot of talk about what we have to do and what are you doing to find water and 
give us a sustainable water supply?  In February you were presented with the 
three sisters plan and it has never been put on the agenda.  Director Baggerly 
responded that we are already involved in the project with the City of Ventura 
and Calleguas for intertie.  That is the first stage of the three sister program.   
Negotiation right now is ongoing for the second part of three sisters program to 
provide an insurance policy for Calleguas.  That is the project.  You are not 
understanding that we are already in the process of hobo or verbo.  We are 
looking at a desalter.  That is a possibility.  There is an administrative process we 
have to follow, not just putting a whim on the agenda to approve.  Ms. Gerber 
responded it is not your project but you are doing it.  Some of the best minds on 
water and water supply in our valley came up with this plan; they are not being 
paid to do it. They brought it and presented it to you.  It is incumbent on you to 
not just listen but to discuss and you are telling me you are but you don’t want to 
talk about it.  Director Baggerly responded you can’t escape the fact we are in 
the process of developing access to state water with the City of Ventura and 
Calleguas and with United. These are large scale projects that take time and 
effort and follow state law, Ceqa documents are being developed.  It is the 
process and you have to wait.  Ms. Gerber responded that if you are going to put 
on the agenda water supply you should have updated us on the three sisters and 
verbo and hobo.  The process is frustrating me.  Have a more open discussion 
with the public and the people that can discuss these things.   
 

Pricilla Galgas mentioned in the past droughts we have experienced I 
would notice cards on tables to conserve water and to not order it if you are not 
going to drink it.  Possibly Casitas and Ventura River could supply little cards on 
the tables as a reminder.  Mr. Wickstrum suggested they go to Om tonight as 
they have what you are talking about.  We have also met with Alex Kim at Ojai 
Valley Inn and he is messaging out as far as laundry etc.  It is a good suggestion. 
 

Director Baggerly discussed the questions Richard Hajas asked.  We are 
calling something emergencies and you call it a short term fix.  We are looking to 
build our water portfolio to have water for our customers.  Director Baggerly 
added you want us to set a policy on the amount of sales we can have.  Mr. 
Hajas replied I don’t think you can meet your safe yield.  Director Baggerly 
responded we don’t intend to meet safe yield.  Mr. Hajas replied you reduced it.  
The WEAP calls for 18,200 af.  I don’t believe we have enough water to meet 
that on a regular basis.  Director Baggerly responded that is why we have 
demand reduction features.  Mr. Hajas replied you wouldn’t need them with the 
plan because there is enough supply.  Director Baggerly responded that is all 
theoretical.  Mr. Hajas said it is a real problem we all have to face, knowing how 
much water you can take and knowing what the demand is.  The demand can be 
much lower.  Director Baggerly replied reality is showing that.  Mr. Hajas asked 
what is your true demand and how much more water do you need to meet that?  
You need to know what you need.  I don’t believe you know what you need.  You 



8 
 

have not reached consensus. The State Water Project by itself might not be 
enough. You can evaluate the risk of making that safe yield too high.  Not let lake 
level go below a certain level.  Set policy to meet those goals.  Get together and 
agree on goals then you would have more support from the community.  Director 
Baggerly asked are we walking down the same path?  We are working on the 
interconnection for access to the state water project.  Something that has not 
been a reality in my 30 years.  We both think that is a good idea.  Mr. Hajas 
responded you and I yes, but as an organization you have not done anything.  
Director Baggerly responded you know the actions we have taken to be a partner 
in that process.  Five of us voted for that.  Mr. Hajas replied you are more of a 
partner than you were three months ago.  You are a reluctant partner.  If you 
know what you need you have a better position at the bargaining table.  Mr. 
Hajas said Casitas has no formal commitment to how much water you need.  
That is a problem.  If I look through your documents you talk about state water 
connection as an emergency.  The discussion on how to use that is critical.  Is 
the city going to use it? Director Baggerly responded that is in negotiation. Mr. 
Hajas replied I encourage you to look at minimal level and look at safe yield.  
What if you don’t need any more?  You have not done that analysis. 
 

Item b and c were offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Hicks and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
9. Recommend approval of the revisions to the Lake Casitas Recreation 

Area Agreement with Rotary Club of Ojai West Foundation Inc. for the 
Special Event Called the Ojai Wine Festival.   APPROVED 

  
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser, the 
above recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
10. Proposed Fees and Charges for the Casitas Water Adventure at the Lake 

Casitas Recreation Area. 
 

a. Public Hearing 
President Word explained that this is the time and place for a public 

hearing to discuss the proposed fees for Casitas Water Adventure and asked the 
Clerk of the Board to provide information on the people who had sent comments.  
The Clerk replied that there were no comments or communications received. 
 



9 
 

President Word opened the public hearing at 5:18 p.m. and asked for 
public comment and hearing no public comments he adjourned the public 
hearing at 5:18 p.m. 
 

b. Resolution approving the Preliminary Assessment for the Restructuring 
and Revision in Fees and Charges for the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area.        ADOPTED 

 
The resolution was offered by Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser 

and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
11. Ordinance establishing Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of the 

Lake Casitas Recreation Area.     ADOPTED 
 
 The ordinance was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director 
Baggerly and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 Ordinance is numbered 18-01. 
 
12. Recommend the attendance by Director Baggerly at the May 21st meeting 

of the Ojai Valley Democratic Club as a day of service. 
 
 A member of the public who had previously requested to speak to this 
item was not present when the item was discussed.  
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Hicks, the above 
recommendation was approved. 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
13. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
b. Water Consumption Report 
c. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
d. Investment Report. 
 
The information items were offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 

Director Baggerly and approved by the following roll call vote: 



10 
 

 
AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 

  NOES: Directors: None 
 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

14. Adjournment. 
 

President Word adjourned the meeting at 5:25. p.m. 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      Mary Bergen, Secretary 

 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM:  JORDAN SWITZER, ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 
SUBJECT: AWARD PURCHASE ORDER CONTRACT – LCRA TEAPOT PLAYGROUND 

RESURFACING 
DATE:  MAY 14, 2018 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors accept the proposal submitted by Great Western 
Recreation under the U.S. Communities Government Purchasing Alliance, and award the 
purchase order contract for the construction of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area-Playground 
Surface Repairs-Teapot Playground to Great Western Recreation in the amount of $30,307.50. 
It is further recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to approve the purchase 
order contract for said work and the Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of 
the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The Teapot Playground surface has been undermined by rodents and has deteriorated, 
necessitating the removal of the existing surface, installation of cement slurry along with new 
cushion and wear courses.   
 
The City of Charlotte, North Carolina, on behalf of the U.S. Communities Government 
Purchasing Alliance, competitively solicited and awarded Contract No. 2017001134 for 
Playground and Outdoor Fitness Equipment, Site Accessories, Surfacing and Related Products 
& Services to GameTime Inc. on July 1, 2017 for an initial five-year term. This District may utilize 
said contract as a member of U.S. Communities. 
 
Great Western Recreation, a subsidiary of GameTime Inc., completed a similar project for the 
resurfacing of Campground G’s playground to the satisfaction of the District, has a current C-
61/D34 Contractor’s license in good standing, and is currently registered with the California 
Department of Industrial Relations. 
 
The Fiscal Year 2017-18 budget includes $32,000 to replace playground surfaces. This puts the 
total project cost under budget. This project is eligible for a 50% reimbursement from the United 
States Bureau of Reclamation grant program.  Performance and payment bonds are not required 
for this project as the cost is less than $35,000. 
 
This project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act under Sections 
15301 and 15302. 
 













































1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE: Consideration of Action on Water Exchange Agreement between Casitas 
Municipal Water District, City of Ventura and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

Date:   May 16, 2018 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors  

a) Make the findings that the exchange of State Water Project Table A water is exempt 
from environmental review under California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
pursuant to Water Code section 1729, State CEQA Guidelines sections 15282(u), 
15301, and 15061 (b)(3);  and  

b) Approve the Agreement between San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and the City of 
San Buenaventura and Casitas Municipal Water District for the exchange of 2018 
State Water Project Table A water;  and 

c) Authorize the General Manager to sign the Agreement and to make any nonmaterial 
changes to the final version of the Agreement, subject to review by legal counsel; 

d) Approve by resolution the Preliminary Assessment and direct staff to file a Notice of 
Exemption;  and 

e) Authorize staff to develop and execute any agreements or documentation which may 
be required by the Department of Water Resources for this transaction;  and 

f) Designate the monetary funds received by Casitas from San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency to a reserve account that is dedicated to Casitas’ water security projects. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On March 28, 2018, the Casitas Board of Directors directed staff to develop an agreement 
with San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) for the one-year exchange of State Water 
Project Table A water entitlements held by Casitas and Ventura Water.  Further direction was 
given to request the approval from the Ventura County Watershed Protection District for a 



2 

 

transfer or exchange of the entitlement to an agency that is located outside of the County of 
Ventura, in accordance with the 1971 Agreement between Casitas and the Ventura County 
Watershed Protection District.   
 
The Agreement has followed the conditions of the initial term sheet that was presented to the 
Board, summarized by the following: 
 

1. Exchange all Casitas’ and Ventura Water’s portion of the 2018 Table A allocation from 
the State of California Department of Water Resources regardless of the final 
allocation percentage. 

2. Payment of 100% of the Casitas’ and Ventura Water’s portion of the Transportation 
Capital and Minimum as well as the Conservation Capital and Minimum. (Casitas’ 
share of the 2018 Estimate is approx. $730,000.00) 

3. Return to Casitas and Ventura Water 40% of all Table A water transferred within the 
next ten years. 

4. SGPWA to pay all DWR variable rate costs for the delivery of the exchanged water to 
their service area; the Casitas and Ventura Water to pay the DWR variable costs for all 
water returned. 

5. Ten year term of the exchange contract with a provision to extend if needed. 
6. SGPWA to complete CEQA for their service area. 

 
On April 17, 2018, the Ventura County Board of Supervisors approved a letter of non-
objection in support of the water exchange to an agency that is located outside of the County 
of Ventura. 
   
The State Water Contractors Transfer Committee and Board approved forwarding the 
request for the exchange to the Department of Water Resources.   If the Agreement is 
approved, the parties will initiate procedures for the Department of Water Resources approval 
of the transaction.  If DWR does not approve the exchange, the amounts paid by SGPWA will 
be refunded by Casitas and Ventura Water. 
 
The attached Agreement has been reviewed by staff and counsel and is presented for 
consideration of approval of the Casitas Board of Directors. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
Staff has determined that the proposed transaction is exempt from environmental review 
under CEQA pursuant to Water Code section 1729, State CEQA Guidelines sections 
15282(u), 15301, and 15061 (b)(3).   
 



3 

 

Water Code section 1729 and State CEQA Guidelines section 15282(u) exempt from CEQA 
review a temporary change in the point of diversion, place of use, of purpose of use due to a 
transfer or exchange of water or water rights. The proposed transaction changes the point of 
use and does not involve the construction of any new or additional facilities to deliver the 
water to the point of use.  The one-year exchange satisfies the definition of “temporary 
change” pursuant to Water Code section 1729 and thereby qualifies for the statutory 
exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines sections 15282(u).    
 
The proposed Project is categorically exempt from environmental review under CEQA 
pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15301 (Class 1 – Existing).  The Project 
(exchange of water) does not involve an expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of 
the lead agency’s determination.  Existing facilities will be used to deliver water to the 
SGPWA.  It is recognized that at some time in the future, Casitas and Ventura Water will 
proceed through the separate CEQA analysis for facilities that will deliver the return of 40% of 
the Table A water, and that the first phase of said facilities is currently under CEQA review by 
the Ventura Water. 
 
Additionally, the Project is exempt pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) 
which exempts those activities for which it can be seen with certainty that there is no potential 
to result in significant environmental effects.  The Project involves the transfer of an existing 
allocation of water within existing facilities, and therefore there is no potential for a significant 
environmental impact. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The Agreement, if approved by all agencies, will bring to Casitas approximately $730,000 and 
the future return of 40% of the 2018 exchanged water will provide needed water and revenue 
from the sale of said water.  The revenue to be received by Casitas from SGPWA is 
recommended to be ear-marked to a reserve fund that will be used for water security 
projects. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Agreement between San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and the City of San 
Buenaventura and Casitas Municipal Water District for the Exchange of 2018 
State Water Project Table A Water. 

 
2) Preliminary Assessment – Exhibit A. 

 
3) Notice of Exemption – Exhibit B. 

 
4) Resolution.  

















  
 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
   
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT FOR 
THE WATER EXCHANGE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER 

DISTRICT, CITY OF VENTURA AND SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY, 
ADOPTING THE NOTICE OF EXEMPTION, AND 

DIRECTING THE NOTICE OF EXEMPTION TO BE FILED 
WITH THE CLERK OF THE COUNTY OF VENTURA 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved the Preliminary Assessment at its regular meeting on 
May 23, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it was determined that the project is exempt because said project is considered to be 
categorically exempt from environmental review under CEQA pursuant to Water Code section 1729, State 
CEQA Guidelines sections 15282(u), 15301, and 15061 (b)(3). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District as follows: 
 
1. The Board finds that the issuance of the Agreement: 
 
 (a) is a temporary change in the point of diversion, place of use, of purpose of use due to a 

transfer or exchange of water or water rights; and 
 (b) does not involve an expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s 

determination; and 
 (c) can be seen with certainty that there is no potential to result in significant environmental 

effects; and 
 (d) involves the transfer of an existing allocation of water within existing facilities, and 

therefore there is no potential for a significant environmental impact. 
 
2. That the Notice of Exemption for the Water Exchange Agreement between Casitas Municipal 
Water District, City of Ventura and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, attached hereto as Exhibit "A", is 
hereby adopted. 
 
3. That the Clerk of the Board file the Notice of Exemption with the Clerk of the County of Ventura. 
 
 ADOPTED this May 23, 2018. 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 James W. Word, President 
 Casitas Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Mary Bergen, Secretary  
Casitas Municipal Water District 



 1 

 

 
 

 PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT 
 Casitas Municipal Water District 
 1055 Ventura Avenue 
 Oak View, California 93022 
 
TO: Clerk's Office 
 Ventura County 
 800 South Victoria Avenue 
 Ventura, California 93009 
 
 
Project Title: The Agreement between San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and the City of San 
Buenaventura and Casitas Municipal Water District for the Exchange of 2018 State Water Project 
Table A Water.  
 
Description and Purpose of Project: A temporary exchange of Casitas’ 2018 entitlement to 
State Water Project Table A water to San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, pursuant to the 
Water Supply Contract between the State of California Department of Water Resources and 
Ventura County Flood Control District (December 2, 1963) and amendments thereof.  
Casitas Municipal Water District is making its annual entitlement of up to 5,000 acre-feet of 
Table A water, to which it has no pipeline facilities to transport into its service area, available 
through existing facilities to the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 
Preliminary Assessment: The project is considered is exempt from environmental review 
under CEQA pursuant to Water Code section 1729, State CEQA Guidelines sections 
15282(u), 15301, and 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA guidelines. 
 
     
 
Project Location:     District-wide. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 
Name of Public Agency Carrying Out Project: Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
Contact Person:     Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 
       Phone Number: (805) 649-2251. 
 
 
Date: __________________________________ _______________________________________ 
 James Word, President     
 Casitas Municipal Water District     
 
 
 
 



 1 

 

 

 
 

 Exhibit A 
 NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 Casitas Municipal Water District 
 1055 Ventura Avenue 
 Oak View, California 93022 
 
TO: Clerk's Office 
 Ventura County 
 800 South Victoria Avenue 
 Ventura, California 93009 
 
Project Title:  The Agreement between San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and the City 

of San Buenaventura and Casitas Municipal Water District for the 
Exchange of 2018 State Water Project Table A Water. 

 
Project Location:  District-wide 
 
Description and Purpose of Project:  A temporary exchange of Casitas’ 2018 
entitlement to State Water Project Table A water to San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, 
pursuant to the Water Supply Contract between the State of California Department of 
Water Resources and Ventura County Flood Control District (December 2, 1963) and 
amendments thereof.  Casitas Municipal Water District is making its annual entitlement of 
up to 5,000 acre-feet of Table A water, to which it has no pipeline facilities to transport 
into its service area, available through existing facilities to the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 
Name of Public Agency Carrying Out Project:  Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
Exempt Status: The project is considered is exempt from environmental review under 

CEQA pursuant to Water Code section 1729, State CEQA 
Guidelines sections 15282(u), 15301, and 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA 
guidelines. 

 
Contact Person: Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 
   Phone Number: (805) 649-2251. 
 
Attached is a copy of Resolution No.            , adopted by the Casitas Municipal Water 
District on                                 , 2018.      
 
 
 
Date:                              Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager  
 Casitas Municipal Water District                                             



 2 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: JULIA ARANDA, ENGINEERING MANAGER 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENTS – CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
AND ON-CALL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2018-19 

DATE: 5/16/2018 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
It is recommended the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to sign 
professional services agreements with: Michael K. Nunley & Associates, Inc.; Water 
Works Engineers, LLC; MNS Engineers, Inc.; Cannon Corporation; and HDR 
Engineering, Inc. for on-call engineering services for fiscal year 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
The Engineering Capital Projects budget for fiscal year 2018-19 includes significant 
effort for design of improvements to the Casitas and Ojai Water Systems. The number 
and scope of these improvements requires the assistance of outside engineering 
expertise to assist with hydraulic modeling, evaluation of alternatives, feasibility studies, 
permitting, surveying, environmental compliance, and engineering design services. 
District Engineering staff will coordinate the work of consultants for specific projects. 
 
A Request for Qualifications for On-Call Engineering Services was advertised on the 
District’s website on April 9, 2018 to provide on-call engineering services for fiscal year 
2018-19, with optional one-year extensions for two additional years. Six Statements of 
Qualification (SOQs) were received prior to the deadline of May 2, 2018. A committee 
composed of Engineering and Operations and Maintenance staff reviewed and ranked 
the six SOQs, checked client references, and met to discuss the merits of the teams. 
Five firms received the highest rankings: 1) Michael K. Nunley & Associates, Inc., 
2) Water Works Engineers, LLC, 3) MNS Engineers, Inc., 4) Cannon Corporation, and 
5) HDR Engineering, Inc. 
 
Task orders will be issued to firms on a rotating basis based on the expertise of the firm 
and their subconsultants. The consultant selected for the Task Order will provide a 



 
 

letter proposal to the District with a project understanding, approach, scope, fee, and 
schedule. A separate Task Order will be issued for each project with a negotiated 
scope, fee, and schedule. There is no designated minimum nor maximum value of 
services to be awarded to any one consultant. Services to be provided will be 
dependent on the capital improvement program budget on an annual basis. Task 
Orders above the General Manager’s authorization limit will be presented to the 
appropriate Committee and the Board for approval. 
 
Future years may include services for support during bidding and construction, 
construction inspection services, and preparation of record drawings. 
     
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Funding for this project is included as part of the Ojai System Capital budget and 
Casitas System Capital budget for FY 2018-19. 
 
 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 1 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER District & 

[Consultant] 

FOR  

ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES FY 2018-19 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this              day of         in the year 2018 by 
and between the CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER District, herein designated as the District, and 
[Consultant], herein designated as the Consultant.  Together, District and Consultant shall be 
referred to herein as Parties. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

WHEREAS, the District issued a Request for Qualifications for On-Call Engineering 
Services for FY 2018-19; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant submitted a Statement of Qualifications dated May 2, 2018 
presenting their qualifications for the anticipated scope of work for on-call engineering 
services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Consultant is well qualified to complete the requested professional 
engineering services; and 

 
WHEREAS, District desires to retain and Consultant is willing to provide the professional 
engineering services requested; and 
 
WHEREAS, District intends to issue individual Task Orders for specific engineering 
projects for which the scope, fee and schedule will be negotiated at that time by the 
Parties.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals above and their mutual promises, 
obligations, valuable consideration  and covenants herein contained, the Parties hereby 
agree to abide by the following: 

 
1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the date this 

Agreement is made and entered into, as first written above, until the completion of all 
services by the Consultant and acceptance of those services and materials by the District 
or until June 30, 2019. The District reserves the right to extend the term of this Agreement 
for one-year intervals for a maximum of two additional years. 

 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 2 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

2. DATA FURNISHED BY District.  For the purpose of aiding Consultant in the performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement, District agrees to furnish Consultant with existing 
information which District has available and which Consultant may request. Consultant 
shall apply reasonable caution in its use and interpretation of the data and shall promptly 
advise District of any suspected inaccuracies or omissions in the data that has been 
furnished, or may be furnished during the project.  Consultant shall have no liability for 
defects in the Services attributable to Consultant’s reliance upon or use of As Built 
drawings, furnished by District or third parties retained by District. 

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES.   

 
The scope of services for each Task Order will be negotiated separately by the Parties for 
each Task Order issued by the District. 

 
4. FEE FOR SERVICES.  The District shall pay to the Consultant on a completed task basis 

for services requested by the District for each Task Order. The completed task unit cost 
shall be stated in the scope of work agreed to by the Parties.  The task unit cost for 
services shall be the fully loaded cost and shall include all overhead costs, material costs 
and miscellaneous costs.  
 
The total fee for services shall not exceed the negotiated fee for each Task Order without 
the prior written consent of the District.   

   
5. DELIVERABLES.  The format, completion and delivery of work products shall be provided 

in the scope of work for each Task Order agreed to by the Parties.  
    
6. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION.  Compensation shall be billed monthly in increments 

based on the percentage of each task completed for each Task Order. 
 
7. CHARGES FOR REVIEW OF BILLS.  The Consultant shall not charge District for 

questions of billings under this Agreement. The Consultant shall answer all questions 
about billings to the satisfaction of District. 

 
8. NO INTEREST, NO ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  No interest shall be charged on bills and each 

party will bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs for any lawsuit or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution methodology arising out of this project. 

 
9. CHANGES.  Consultant shall provide engineering services as required by this Agreement 

without modification or changes to the hourly rate or any other extra compensation, 
excepting only changes authorized by a written change order signed by District and 
Consultant.  Any change in the total compensation allowed for performance under this 
Agreement shall be accomplished only by such a change order. Accordingly, no course of 
conduct or dealings between the parties, nor express or implied acceptance of alterations 
or additions to the work, and no claim that District has been unjustly enriched by any 
alteration or addition to work, whether or not there is, in fact, any unjust enrichment to the 
work, shall be the basis of any claim to any increase in the total compensation provided for 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 3 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

in this Agreement. Should District request a change in the services covered by this 
Agreement, Consultant shall not expend any time or money for the change until a written 
change order is prepared and signed by District and Consultant. Should Consultant 
expend time or funds without an executed change order, all costs therefore shall be the 
sole responsibility of Consultant. Once a change order is prepared and signed by both 
parties, it shall constitute a final settlement of all matters relating to the change which is 
the subject of the change order, including, but limited to, all direct and indirect costs 
associated with such change and any and all adjustments to the fee due the Consultant 
and the work schedule. 

 
10. PROJECT SCHEDULE.  Consultant understands the importance of accurate and timely 

completion of the required tasks for each Task Order. The project schedule shall be in the 
scope of work for each Task Order as agreed to by the Parties.  

 
11. RESPONSIBILITY OF Consultant.   
 

a) Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and the coordination of all testing, analysis, inspection, reports, designs 
and other services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement. Consultant shall, 
without additional compensation, promptly correct any Consultant errors, omissions, or 
other deficiencies in its analysis, inspection, testing, reports, designs, and other 
services; to the extent such corrections are not attributable to change in project 
description or data modification by District. 

 b) Consultant shall perform such professional services as may be necessary to 
accomplish the work required to be performed under this Agreement, in accordance 
with this Agreement and the negotiated scope of work for each Task Order. Approval 
by District of analyses, inspection, testing, reports, designs and incidental engineering 
work or materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve Consultant of 
responsibility for the technical adequacy of its work. Neither District’s approval or 
acceptance of, nor payment for, any of Consultant's services shall be construed to 
operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement. 

c) Consultant shall be and remain liable in accordance with applicable California law for 
damages to District caused by Consultant's negligent performance of any of the 
services furnished under this Agreement.   
 

12. PERSONNEL. District requires the following project team members to work directly with the 
District until completion of the project. Consultant shall inform District immediately if any of the 
following personnel or staff listed in the proposal become unavailable for any reason prior to 
completion of their tasks: 
 

Name       Role  
[NAME OF PRINCIPAL]   Principal-in-Charge 
[NAME OF PROJECT MANAGER] Project Manager 
 

In the event a change in any of the above-named personnel or staff listed in the proposal 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 4 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

becomes necessary, Consultant shall promptly submit to the District the name and qualifications 
of the proposed replacement person(s). Consultant and District will then agree upon the selection 
of the replacement person(s) whose qualifications and expertise shall be at least equal to the 
person replaced. The penalty for replacement of personnel without permission of Casitas will be 
ten percent (10%) of the gross of the contract. Consultant agrees not to request an increase in 
the per-hour fee or any other compensation for such a change in personnel. 

 
13. INSURANCE.  
  

a) During the course of this Agreement, Consultant shall pay for and maintain in full force 
and effect, and cause each of its subconsultants to maintain in full force and effect, all 
insurance required by any governmental agency having jurisdiction to require particular 
insurance of Consultant or its subcontractors in connection with or related to the 
assessment services to be performed under this Agreement. 
 

b) During the course of this Agreement, Consultant shall pay for and maintain in full force 
and effect, and cause each of its subconsultants to maintain in full force and effect, 
workers' compensation insurance, including occupational disease provisions, as 
required by the laws of the State of California and employer's general liability insurance 
for all labor employed by them, directly or indirectly, in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
 c) During the course of this Agreement, Consultant shall pay for and maintain in full force 

and effect, public liability and property damage insurance naming District, its officers, 
directors, and employees as additional insured, insuring against liability and claims for 
damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, death or injury to or destruction 
of tangible property arising out of or resulting from any work performed under this 
Agreement, whether such work is performed by Consultant or a subconsultant or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or by anyone else for whose acts any 
of them may be liable. Such insurance shall include all major divisions of coverage and 
be on a comprehensive basis, including: (a) premises/operations; (b) independent 
contractor’s protection; (c) products included in operations; (d) contractual (including 
Consultant’s indemnity obligations for tort liability under this Agreement); (e) owned, 
non-owned and hired motor vehicles and other mobile equipment; and (f) broad form 
property damage endorsement, including completed operations. The limits of liability 
for such insurance shall be not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for public liability 
and $1,000,000 per occurrence for property damage. Such insurance shall be issued 
by a responsible carrier or carriers acceptable to District. All such insurance shall be 
written on an occurrence basis and shall be primary and noncontributory. Consultant 
shall cause each of its subcontractors to procure, pay for and maintain in full force and 
effect during the course of this Agreement, public liability and property damage 
insurance reasonably satisfactory to District and naming District, its officers, directors 
and employees as additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations 
performed on behalf of Consultant for the consulting services covered by this 
Agreement.  
 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 5 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

The District, its directors, officers, employees, agents and volunteers are to be covered 
as insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of 
the Consultant, products and completed operations of the Consultant; premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Consultant; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the District, its directors, officers, employees, agents 
and volunteers. 
 

d) Worker's Compensation Insurance - by his signature hereunder, Consultant 
certifies that he is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which 
require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or 
to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and he 
will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of 
this contract.  
 
The Consultant shall maintain, and shall cause all subcontractors he may employ to 
maintain, adequate workers compensation insurance under the laws of the State of 
California for all labor employed by them, directly or indirectly, in the execution of 
the work. The Consultant and all subcontractors shall file with the District 
certification of such workers compensation insurance prior to beginning any work 
under this Agreement. 
 

e) Prior to the commencement of performance of any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant and its subconsultants shall furnish District with certificates of insurance in 
form and substance satisfactory to the District evidencing all of the insurance coverage 
required by paragraphs a. through c. above. All policies and certificates of insurance 
required under paragraphs a. through c. above shall expressly provide for no less than 
30 days prior written notice to District in the event of a cancellation, non-renewal or 
expiration of the coverage. 

 
14. INDEMNIFICATION. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold District and its officers, 

directors, and employees, harmless from all loss, liability and expense from all third party tort 
claims and demands or liability if and to the extent caused by negligence or willful misconduct 
of Consultant, its subconsultants and employees whether such claims, demands or liability 
are caused by Consultant, Consultant's agents or employees, or subconsultants employed by 
Consultant, their agents or employees, or products installed on the project by Consultant or its 
subconsultant, excepting such loss, liability or expense as may be caused by District’s 
negligence or willful misconduct.  Such indemnification shall extend to claims, demands or 
liability for injury, death or damage to property arising after completion of the project as well as 
during the work's progress. The foregoing indemnification shall apply, without limitation, to 
bodily injury and property damage claims as well as to stop notices and monetary claims for 
labor, materials or equipment furnished in the performance of the professional services 
covered by this Agreement. In the event such liability, claims, actions, causes of action or 
demands are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of more than one party, such 
liability shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own fault. The duty to defend shall not 
apply to professional liability claims. 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 6 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement or any payments due under this 

Agreement, either voluntarily or involuntarily, without the prior written consent of the other 
party. If and to the extent any assignment is authorized, it shall not be effective until the 
assignee signs a written agreement to be bound by all of the provisions of this Agreement, 
nor shall it relieve the assignor of its obligations under this Agreement unless the written 
consent to the assignment expressly states that the assignor shall be relieved. 

 
16. TERMINATION.  The District may, by written notice to Consultant, suspend or discontinue 

the performance of all work pursuant to this Agreement, and may terminate this 
Agreement, with or without cause after 15 calendar day’s written notice from the date of 
mailing. In the event of a termination without cause, Consultant will be entitled to a 
reasonable portion of the lump sum fee for its services rendered prior to the effective date 
of the notice, but Consultant shall have no claim against District for loss of anticipated 
profits or other payment on account of services not yet performed and which are not 
thereafter performed by Consultant. In the event of a termination without cause, 
Consultant will submit a final invoice to District for all services rendered prior to termination 
within a reasonable time, not to exceed 45 days of the effective date of such notice. Any 
bills received after the expiration of the 45-day period need not be paid by the District. 

 
17. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All plans, studies, sketches, reports, test data, and 

drawings, prepared by or for either party pursuant to this Agreement including copyright 
ownership shall be the property of District when Consultant has been compensated for all 
undisputed billings in accordance with this Agreement, whether the work for which they 
are prepared be executed or not. Upon completion of all work under this Agreement, or in 
the event this Agreement is terminated prior to completion of all such work, all documents, 
plans, specifications, drawings pertaining to the facility, and all other material provided to 
assist Consultant in performing under this Agreement shall be delivered forthwith to 
District. However, nothing shall prevent Consultant from using intellectual property 
developed under this contract in other works. All documents, including, but not limited to, 
drawings, specifications, and computer software prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement are instruments for service specific to this project. They are not intended nor 
represented to be suitable for reuse by District or others on extensions of the project or on 
any other project. Any reuse without the prior written verification or adaptation by District 
for the specific purpose intended shall be at District’s sole risk. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW; PLACE OF SUIT. This Agreement is to be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any lawsuit arising out of 
this Agreement shall be filed and prosecuted exclusively in Ventura County, California 
Superior Court. 

 
19. SUBCONTRACTS. District has entered into this Agreement in order to receive the 

services of Consultant. The provisions of the Agreement shall equally apply to any 
subcontractor of Consultant. Consultant shall include in all subcontracts a clause making 
the terms of this Agreement binding upon the subcontract. 

 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 7 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

20. MONTHLY BILLINGS. Contractor shall not bill District more often than monthly during the 
term of this Agreement. Invoices shall fully define the work component completed for each 
Task Order, the hours spent on each task, the budget for each person in terms of cost and 
hours, the pay rate for the person assigned, the percentage of the task completed in terms 
of actual work remaining, and costs remaining until completion of the task at the time of 
billing. Each invoice shall also contain a purchase order number and Task Order number 
assigned and the invoice shall state the billing period. The invoice will be paid within thirty 
(30) days after the approval by the District Board of Directors. 

  
21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the whole Agreement between the 

Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and neither party nor any of its 
agents or employees has made any representation except as specifically provided herein. 
Neither of the parties in executing or performing this Agreement is relying upon any 
statement or information to whomsoever made or given directly or indirectly, verbally or in 
writing by any individual or corporation except as specifically provided herein. The 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. 

 
22. OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE.  Consultant’s opinions on cost and schedule 

shall be made on the basis of available information and Consultant’s expertise and 
qualifications as a professional. Consultant does not warrant or guarantee that its opinions 
on cost or schedule of current and future levels and events will not vary from Consultant’s 
estimates or forecasts or from actual outcomes. 

 
23. NOTICES.  All communication, notices, and demands of any kind which either party 

hereto may be required or may desire to give to or serve upon the other party may be 
given or served by manual delivery to such party or an office thereof or by enclosing it in a 
sealed envelope and depositing it in the United State mail, postage prepaid, registered, 
and addressed to the respective parties as follows: 

 
To District:  
Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 
(805) 649-2251 

To Consultant: 
Name, Title 
Firm 
Address 
City State Zip 
Phone 

 
 
The effective date of all hand-delivered notices shall be the date of delivery. The effective date of 
all mailed notices shall be the second day following the deposit in the mail. 
 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 8 [Consultant]  

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 
 
ATTEST:     CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER District   
 
                                                    By:     ___________________________                          
Secretary,     Casitas Municipal Water District 
Casitas Municipal Water District    
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                                                          
John M. Matthews, Attorney 
Arnold LaRochelle Mathews VanConas & Zirbel LLP  

 

[NAME OF Consultant] 
 
 
 
 

By:   _________________________________ 
       
Title:         
 
Printed Name:       

          



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: LINDSAY CAO, CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL CHANGE ORDER REQUEST –RINCON PUMP PLANT 

ELECTRICAL UPGRADE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NEW 
ELECTRICAL CONTROL ROOM  

DATE: MAY 23, 2018 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the change order request submitted by 
Consulting West to provide architectural and structural design services for Rincon Pump Plant 
Electrical Upgrade Project in the amount of $24,550.  

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

 
The Rincon Pump Plant is in need of electrical upgrades to improve the efficiency of the facility 
and bring the facility into current code compliance. On August 4, 2016, the Board approved a 
purchase order contract to Consulting West in the amount of $47,600 for electrical engineering 
services for the upgrade of Rincon Pump Plant’s main service switchgear.  
 
During the design, it was determined that a new control room is required to house the main 
service switchgear at the site. Consulting West submitted a change order proposal for the 
additional architectural and structural design services in the amount of $24,550.  
 
The FY 2017-18 Budget allocated $465,000 to complete this project.  
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: LINDSAY CAO, CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE AND AWARD 

– CULTURAL RESOURCES ON-CALL SERVICES 
DATE: 5/23/2018 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
It is recommended the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to sign 
professional services agreements with: Rincon Consultants, Inc., Padre Associates, 
Inc., and Dudek for cultural resource on-call services for fiscal year 2018-2019.    
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
The District is in the process of rehabilitating the Ojai Water System.  Some of the projects 
will involve excavation. Regulatory agencies require the District to have on site a qualified 
cultural resource monitor during some earth disturbing operations, primarily within the Ojai 
City boundaries. The cultural resource monitor will observe the construction area during 
earth disturbing activities.   
 
The work will be on an “on call” basis. Casitas expects to have three firms on an 
approved list who will be called as projects are approved and awarded for construction. 
In some cases, Casitas’ crews will be completing the excavation. In other cases, an 
outside contractor will be completing the project. 
 
A Request for Proposals for On-Call Cultural Resources Monitoring Services was 
advertised on the District website on January 17, 2018, and six proposals were received 
prior to the deadline of February 13, 2018. Proposals were reviewed and evaluated. 
Based on each firm’s combination of level of effort, site specific experience and 
substantial staff resources to provide the District with the best product; staff 
recommends three firms to be accepted as on-call cultural resources consultants: 
Rincon Consultants, Inc., Padre Associates, Inc., and Dudek.   
 
Funding for this project is included as part of the Ojai System Capital budget and 
Casitas System Capital budget for FY 2018-19. 
 
G:\engr.wks\rfp\Cultural Resource Monitoring 
 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 1 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT & 

[CONSULTANT] 

FOR  

CULTURAL RESOURCES ON-CALL SERVICES FY 2018-19 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this              day of         in the year 2018 by and 
between the CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER District, herein designated as the District, and 
[CONSULTANT], herein designated as the Consultant. Together, District and Consultant shall be 
referred to herein as Parties. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

WHEREAS, the District issued a Request for Proposals for Cultural Resource On-Call 
Services for FY 2018-19; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant submitted a Proposal dated February 9, 2018 presenting their 
qualifications for the anticipated scope of work for cultural resource on-call monitoring 
services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Consultant is well qualified to complete the requested cultural resource on-
call monitoring services; and 

 
WHEREAS, District desires to retain and Consultant is willing to provide the cultural 
resource on-call monitoring services requested; and 
 
WHEREAS, District intends to issue individual Task Orders for specific engineering 
projects for which the cultural resource on-call monitoring will be necessary and the scope, 
fee and schedule for cultural resources monitoring will be negotiated at that time by the 
Parties.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals above and their mutual promises, 
obligations, valuable consideration  and covenants herein contained, the Parties hereby 
agree to abide by the following: 

 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 2 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the date this 
Agreement is made and entered into, as first written above, until the completion of all 
services by the Consultant and acceptance of those services and materials by the District 
or until June 30, 2019. The District reserves the right to extend the term of this Agreement 
for one-year intervals for a maximum of two additional years. 

 
2. DATA FURNISHED BY District.  For the purpose of aiding Consultant in the performance 

of its obligations under this Agreement, District agrees to furnish Consultant with existing 
information which District has available and which Consultant may request. Consultant 
shall apply reasonable caution in its use and interpretation of the data and shall promptly 
advise District of any suspected inaccuracies or omissions in the data that has been 
furnished, or may be furnished during the project. Consultant shall have no liability for 
defects in the Services attributable to Consultant’s reliance upon or use of As Built 
drawings, furnished by District or third parties retained by District. 

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES.   

 
The scope of services for each Task Order will be negotiated separately by the Parties for 
each Task Order issued by the District. 

 
4. FEE FOR SERVICES.  The District shall pay to the Consultant on a completed task basis 

for services requested by the District for each Task Order. The completed task unit cost 
shall be stated in the scope of work agreed to by the Parties. The task unit cost for 
services shall be the fully loaded cost and shall include all overhead costs, material costs 
and miscellaneous costs.  
 
The total fee for services shall not exceed the negotiated fee for each Task Order without 
the prior written consent of the District.   

   
5. DELIVERABLES.  The format, completion and delivery of work products shall be provided 

in the scope of work for each Task Order agreed to by the Parties.  
    
6. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION.  Compensation shall be billed monthly in increments 

based on the percentage of each task completed for each Task Order. 
 
7. CHARGES FOR REVIEW OF BILLS.  The Consultant shall not charge District for 

questions of billings under this Agreement. The Consultant shall answer all questions 
about billings to the satisfaction of District. 

 
8. NO INTEREST, NO ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  No interest shall be charged on bills and each 

party will bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs for any lawsuit or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution methodology arising out of this project. 

 
9. CHANGES.  Consultant shall provide cultural resources monitoring services as required by 

this Agreement without modification or changes to the hourly rate or any other extra 
compensation, excepting only changes authorized by a written change order signed by 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 3 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

District and Consultant. Any change in the total compensation allowed for performance 
under this Agreement shall be accomplished only by such a change order. Accordingly, no 
course of conduct or dealings between the parties, nor express or implied acceptance of 
alterations or additions to the work, and no claim that District has been unjustly enriched 
by any alteration or addition to work, whether or not there is, in fact, any unjust enrichment 
to the work, shall be the basis of any claim to any increase in the total compensation 
provided for in this Agreement. Should District request a change in the services covered 
by this Agreement, Consultant shall not expend any time or money for the change until a 
written change order is prepared and signed by District and Consultant. Should Consultant 
expend time or funds without an executed change order, all costs therefore shall be the 
sole responsibility of Consultant. Once a change order is prepared and signed by both 
parties, it shall constitute a final settlement of all matters relating to the change which is 
the subject of the change order, including, but limited to, all direct and indirect costs 
associated with such change and any and all adjustments to the fee due the Consultant 
and the work schedule. 

 
10. PROJECT SCHEDULE.  Consultant understands the importance of accurate and timely 

completion of the required tasks for each Task Order. The project schedule shall be in the 
scope of work for each Task Order as agreed to by the Parties.  

 
11. RESPONSIBILITY OF Consultant.   
 

a) Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and the coordination of all testing, analysis, inspection, reports, designs 
and other services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement. Consultant shall, 
without additional compensation, promptly correct any Consultant errors, omissions, or 
other deficiencies in its analysis, inspection, testing, reports, designs, and other 
services; to the extent such corrections are not attributable to change in project 
description or data modification by District. 

 b) Consultant shall perform such professional services as may be necessary to 
accomplish the work required to be performed under this Agreement, in accordance 
with this Agreement and the negotiated scope of work for each Task Order. Approval 
by District of analyses, inspection, testing, reports, designs and incidental cultural 
resources monitoring work or materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way 
relieve Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy of its work. Neither 
District’s approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of Consultant's services shall 
be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any 
cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement. 

c) Consultant shall be and remain liable in accordance with applicable California law for 
damages to District caused by Consultant's negligent performance of any of the 
services furnished under this Agreement.   
 

12. PERSONNEL. District requires the following project team members to work directly with the 
District until completion of the project. Consultant shall inform District immediately if any of the 
following personnel or staff listed in the proposal become unavailable for any reason prior to 
completion of their tasks: 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 4 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

 
Name       Role  
NAME       TITLE 
NAME       TITLE 
 

In the event a change in any of the above-named personnel or staff listed in the proposal 
becomes necessary, Consultant shall promptly submit to the District the name and qualifications 
of the proposed replacement person(s). Consultant and District will then agree upon the selection 
of the replacement person(s) whose qualifications and expertise shall be at least equal to the 
person replaced. The penalty for replacement of personnel without permission of Casitas will be 
ten percent (10%) of the gross of the contract. Consultant agrees not to request an increase in 
the per-hour fee or any other compensation for such a change in personnel. 

 
13. INSURANCE.  
  

a) During the course of this Agreement, Consultant shall pay for and maintain in full force 
and effect, and cause each of its subconsultants to maintain in full force and effect, all 
insurance required by any governmental agency having jurisdiction to require particular 
insurance of Consultant or its subcontractors in connection with or related to the 
assessment services to be performed under this Agreement. 
 

b) During the course of this Agreement, Consultant shall pay for and maintain in full force 
and effect, and cause each of its subconsultants to maintain in full force and effect, 
workers' compensation insurance, including occupational disease provisions, as 
required by the laws of the State of California and employer's general liability insurance 
for all labor employed by them, directly or indirectly, in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
 c) During the course of this Agreement, Consultant shall pay for and maintain in full force 

and effect, public liability and property damage insurance naming District, its officers, 
directors, and employees as additional insured, insuring against liability and claims for 
damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, death or injury to or destruction 
of tangible property arising out of or resulting from any work performed under this 
Agreement, whether such work is performed by Consultant or a subconsultant or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or by anyone else for whose acts any 
of them may be liable. Such insurance shall include all major divisions of coverage and 
be on a comprehensive basis, including: (a) premises/operations; (b) independent 
contractor’s protection; (c) products included in operations; (d) contractual (including 
Consultant’s indemnity obligations for tort liability under this Agreement); (e) owned, 
non-owned and hired motor vehicles and other mobile equipment; and (f) broad form 
property damage endorsement, including completed operations. The limits of liability 
for such insurance shall be not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for public liability 
and $1,000,000 per occurrence for property damage. Such insurance shall be issued 
by a responsible carrier or carriers acceptable to District. All such insurance shall be 
written on an occurrence basis and shall be primary and noncontributory. Consultant 
shall cause each of its subcontractors to procure, pay for and maintain in full force and 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 5 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

effect during the course of this Agreement, public liability and property damage 
insurance reasonably satisfactory to District and naming District, its officers, directors 
and employees as additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations 
performed on behalf of Consultant for the consulting services covered by this 
Agreement.  
 
The District, its directors, officers, employees, agents and volunteers are to be covered 
as insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of 
the Consultant, products and completed operations of the Consultant; premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Consultant; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the District, its directors, officers, employees, agents 
and volunteers. 
 

d) Worker's Compensation Insurance - by his signature hereunder, Consultant 
certifies that he is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which 
require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or 
to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and he 
will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of 
this contract.  
 
The Consultant shall maintain, and shall cause all subcontractors he may employ to 
maintain, adequate workers compensation insurance under the laws of the State of 
California for all labor employed by them, directly or indirectly, in the execution of 
the work. The Consultant and all subcontractors shall file with the District 
certification of such workers compensation insurance prior to beginning any work 
under this Agreement. 
 

e) Prior to the commencement of performance of any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant and its subconsultants shall furnish District with certificates of insurance in 
form and substance satisfactory to the District evidencing all of the insurance coverage 
required by paragraphs a. through c. above. All policies and certificates of insurance 
required under paragraphs a. through c. above shall expressly provide for no less than 
30 days prior written notice to District in the event of a cancellation, non-renewal or 
expiration of the coverage. 

 
14. INDEMNIFICATION. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold District and its officers, 

directors, and employees, harmless from all loss, liability and expense from all third party tort 
claims and demands or liability if and to the extent caused by negligence or willful misconduct 
of Consultant, its subconsultants and employees whether such claims, demands or liability 
are caused by Consultant, Consultant's agents or employees, or subconsultants employed by 
Consultant, their agents or employees, or products installed on the project by Consultant or its 
subconsultant, excepting such loss, liability or expense as may be caused by District’s 
negligence or willful misconduct. Such indemnification shall extend to claims, demands or 
liability for injury, death or damage to property arising after completion of the project as well as 
during the work's progress. The foregoing indemnification shall apply, without limitation, to 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 6 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

bodily injury and property damage claims as well as to stop notices and monetary claims for 
labor, materials or equipment furnished in the performance of the professional services 
covered by this Agreement. In the event such liability, claims, actions, causes of action or 
demands are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of more than one party, such 
liability shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own fault. The duty to defend shall not 
apply to professional liability claims. 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement or any payments due under this 

Agreement, either voluntarily or involuntarily, without the prior written consent of the other 
party. If and to the extent any assignment is authorized, it shall not be effective until the 
assignee signs a written agreement to be bound by all of the provisions of this Agreement, 
nor shall it relieve the assignor of its obligations under this Agreement unless the written 
consent to the assignment expressly states that the assignor shall be relieved. 

 
16. TERMINATION.  The District may, by written notice to Consultant, suspend or discontinue 

the performance of all work pursuant to this Agreement, and may terminate this 
Agreement, with or without cause after 15 calendar day’s written notice from the date of 
mailing. In the event of a termination without cause, Consultant will be entitled to a 
reasonable portion of the lump sum fee for its services rendered prior to the effective date 
of the notice, but Consultant shall have no claim against District for loss of anticipated 
profits or other payment on account of services not yet performed and which are not 
thereafter performed by Consultant. In the event of a termination without cause, 
Consultant will submit a final invoice to District for all services rendered prior to termination 
within a reasonable time, not to exceed 45 days of the effective date of such notice. Any 
bills received after the expiration of the 45-day period need not be paid by the District. 

 
17. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All plans, studies, sketches, reports, test data, and 

drawings, prepared by or for either party pursuant to this Agreement including copyright 
ownership shall be the property of District when Consultant has been compensated for all 
undisputed billings in accordance with this Agreement, whether the work for which they 
are prepared be executed or not. Upon completion of all work under this Agreement, or in 
the event this Agreement is terminated prior to completion of all such work, all documents, 
plans, specifications, drawings pertaining to the facility, and all other material provided to 
assist Consultant in performing under this Agreement shall be delivered forthwith to 
District. However, nothing shall prevent Consultant from using intellectual property 
developed under this contract in other works. All documents, including, but not limited to, 
drawings, specifications, and computer software prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement are instruments for service specific to this project. They are not intended nor 
represented to be suitable for reuse by District or others on extensions of the project or on 
any other project. Any reuse without the prior written verification or adaptation by District 
for the specific purpose intended shall be at District’s sole risk. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW; PLACE OF SUIT. This Agreement is to be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any lawsuit arising out of 
this Agreement shall be filed and prosecuted exclusively in Ventura County, California 
Superior Court. 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 7 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

 
19. SUBCONTRACTS. District has entered into this Agreement in order to receive the 

services of Consultant. The provisions of the Agreement shall equally apply to any 
subcontractor of Consultant. Consultant shall include in all subcontracts a clause making 
the terms of this Agreement binding upon the subcontract. 

 
20. MONTHLY BILLINGS. Contractor shall not bill District more often than monthly during the 

term of this Agreement. Invoices shall fully define the work component completed for each 
Task Order, the hours spent on each task, the budget for each person in terms of cost and 
hours, the pay rate for the person assigned, the percentage of the task completed in terms 
of actual work remaining, and costs remaining until completion of the task at the time of 
billing. Each invoice shall also contain a purchase order number and Task Order number 
assigned and the invoice shall state the billing period. The invoice will be paid within thirty 
(30) days after the approval by the District Board of Directors. 

  
21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the whole Agreement between the 

Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and neither party nor any of its 
agents or employees has made any representation except as specifically provided herein. 
Neither of the parties in executing or performing this Agreement is relying upon any 
statement or information to whomsoever made or given directly or indirectly, verbally or in 
writing by any individual or corporation except as specifically provided herein. The 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. 

 
22. OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE.  Consultant’s opinions on cost and schedule 

shall be made on the basis of available information and Consultant’s expertise and 
qualifications as a professional. Consultant does not warrant or guarantee that its opinions 
on cost or schedule of current and future levels and events will not vary from Consultant’s 
estimates or forecasts or from actual outcomes. 

 
23. NOTICES.  All communication, notices, and demands of any kind which either party 

hereto may be required or may desire to give to or serve upon the other party may be 
given or served by manual delivery to such party or an office thereof or by enclosing it in a 
sealed envelope and depositing it in the United State mail, postage prepaid, registered, 
and addressed to the respective parties as follows: 

 
To District:  
Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 
805.649.2251 

To Consultant: 
NAME, TITLE 
FIRM 
STREET ADDRESS 
CITY STATE ZIP 
PHONE 

 
The effective date of all hand-delivered notices shall be the date of delivery. The effective date of 
all mailed notices shall be the second day following the deposit in the mail. 
 



     
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 8 [CONSULTANT]  

AGREEMENT FOR CULTURAL RESOURCE ON-CALL MONITORING SERVICES 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 
 
ATTEST:     CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER District   
 
                                                    By:     ___________________________                          
Secretary,     Casitas Municipal Water District 
Casitas Municipal Water District    
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                                                          
John M. Matthews, Attorney 
Arnold LaRochelle Mathews VanConas & Zirbel LLP  

 

[CONSULTANT] 
 
 

By:   _________________________________ 
       
Title:         
 
Printed Name:       

          





















































































































































































































































































































































































 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
 HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING THE 2018-2019 BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the adoption of the 
2018-2019 budget;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the 2018-2019 budget. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at the Casitas Municipal Water 
District, 1055 Ventura Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said 
hearing is hereby fixed as June 27, 2018, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Clerk of the Board of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 
hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2018. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
James W. Word, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mary Bergen, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
  
 
 RESOLUTION CANCELING THE 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SET FOR JULY 11, 2018 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the first regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water 
District falls on July 11, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Directors to cancel that meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal 
Water District that the first regular meeting of the Board scheduled for July 11, 2018 is hereby 
canceled.   
 
 ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2018. 
 
     
        ___________________________ 
        James W. Word, President 
        Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mary Bergen, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 

















CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  JULIA ARANDA, ENGINEERING MANAGER 
FROM:  JORDAN SWITZER, ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 
SUBJECT: LAKE CASITAS MONTHLY STATUS REPORT FOR APRIL 2018 
DATE:  MAY 17, 2018 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This item is presented for information only and no action is required. Data are provisional and 
subject to revision. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Rainfall Data for April 2018 
 
           Casitas Dam      Matilija Dam 
 
April 2018              0.02”     0.00” 
Water Year (Oct 01-Sep 30)                           11.45”   16.75” 
Average Annual Rainfall          23.68”   28.23” 
 
 
Robles Fish Passage and Diversion Facilities 
 
Diversion Data 
 
April 2018:                         0 A.F.  Total Diversions to Date:        649 A.F. 
Diversion Days in April:                 0    Diversion Days this WY:             6 
 
Reservoir Data 
 
Water Surface Elevation (4/30/18):      490.55 Feet  
Water Storage on May 1, 2018:                           83,975 A.F. 
Water Storage Last Month:                     85,023 A.F.    
Net Change in Storage:                                     -     1,048 A.F.      
 
Change in Storage from April 30, 2017:                        -  13,771 A.F.* 
 
 
*Water storage is reported using the 2017 rating table prepared by Tetra Tech as of October 01, 2017.  
In order to convey actual change in reservoir storage, comparisons between current storage and 
storage prior to October 01 is calculated using the 2017 rating table. 



 

 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  April 11, 2018  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for March 2018   
 
Visitation Numbers 

The following is a comparison of visitations* for March 2018:   
 

 March 2018 March 2017 Feb. 2018 

Visitor Days 38,900 46,668 30,012 

Camps 3,965 3,918 3,019 

Cars 9,725 11,667 7,503 

Boats 214 371 170 

Kayaks & 
Canoes 

3 9 1 

 

Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2016/2017 483,738 

2017/2018 436,344 

% Change -9.797 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   

Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement 
decals + campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 

Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 

Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied + extra vehicles 

Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 

Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Operations and Boating  
 
The maintenance crew is in full force getting the park ready for the busy summer season. The 
Recreation Area was closed for day use on March 21 and 22 due to the anticipated 
emergency situation of blocked roads that the predicted heavy rain would bring. Camping 
customers were relocated to Bass and Angler where the Recreation Area exit would have 
remained accessible. The Rowing Club was informed to move their equiopment to higher 
ground. While we did not receive the heavy rain that was anticipated, welcomed water 
continues to flow into the lake through Coyote and Santa Ana Creeks in the Recreation Area. 
Customers enjoy seeing and hearing the water flowing especially in Santa Ana Creek as it is 
near some of the campgrounds.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

2 

        
 

    
Coyote Creek Flow 4/10/2018   Santa Ana Creek Flow Photo 4/10/2018  
       
A new Park Ranger, Steve Sulkowski, joined the team in March. There were seven cables 
sold for new inspections, two vessels were re-inspected and a total of 639 vessels were 
retagged in March. Three vessels failed the first inspection in March 2018. Santa Ana Launch 
Ramp ceased operation after the water level decreased and Old Coyote was reactivated in 
July 2017 and continues to be the only launch ramp in use. Strict protocals continue to be in 
place to prevent quagga and zebra mussels from entering Lake Casitas.  
 
Incidents 
There were 58 calls for service from the public and 55 staff observations of violations where 
the park staff made customer contact in March. There was one medical response requiring 
an ambulance, 42 distrubances with none requiring response from Ventura County Sheriff 
Office. There were 3 unattended fires, 1 boating violation, 5 leash law violations, 13 traffic 
violations, 3 parking violations,  one body contact in Lake Casitas and 8 tresspassing 
contacts. The Santa Ana Road perimeter fence was cut for what the Park Rangers assess 
was for foot traffic to the launch ramp. Park Rangers assisted an abandoned Pot- Belly pig 
found in the watershed following up with Animal Services, two illegal kayaks were removed, 
and four Trout In Classroom sessions resulted in the release of 366 rainbow trout fingerlings 
into the lake. The Department of Fish and Wildife also planted trout in Lake Casitas in March.  
    
 
Revenue Reporting 
The 2017/2018 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the respective months (operations, concessions, 
Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance 
Manager.  



 

 
 

3 

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00
$900,000.00

Ju
ly

Se
pte

m
ber

Nove
m

ber

Ja
nuary

FY 16/17

FY 17/18

 
 

 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Minutes 
Executive Committee 

 
DATE:  May 18, 2018 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of May 11, 2018  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.       

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Jim Word 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
Michael Flood, Assistant General Manager 
 
Public:  Lauri Moore, Sally Madison 

  
2. Public Comments. 

Lauri Moore commented on public reactions to water conservation measures 
taken at her place of business.  
 

3. Board Comments.    
None. 
 

4. General Manager Comments.  
None. 
 

5. Discussion regarding FEMA Recovery for the Thomas Fire. 
The Committee discussed current progress on Thomas fire recovery and staff’s 
work with the representatives from the State Office of Emergency Services and 
FEMA, and regarding the replacement of the Canal-Rice Bridge under a hazard 
mitigation approach.   

 
6. LAFCo Ballot for the election of a member representing independent 

special districts on the Countywide Oversight Board.  
The Committee discussed the call for nominations.  This item will move forward 
to the Board of Directors for a vote. 

 
7. Discussion regarding the meeting schedule in July. 

The committee discussed the cancellation of the July 11, 2018, regular meeting of 
the Board and other meeting in July 2018. 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 

Finance Committee 

 
DATE:    May 18, 2018 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Finance Committee Meeting of May 18, 2018, at 1000 hours. 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Peter Kaiser and Director Jim Word 
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Assistant General Manager, Michael Flood 
  

 Public: Sharon Brown 
  Robert Daddi 
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 

Mr. Daddi asked the Committee to understand and be in front of the impending development of 
additional housing units in the City of Ojai and assure a fair and equal participation in the cost 
incurred by all properties in the Community Facilities District 2013-01 (Ojai). 
 

3. Board/Management comments.   
The General Manager asked that consideration for architectural service for Rincon Pump Plant 
Building be moved to the Board for consideration of the change order in the amount of $24,550. 
 

4. Review of the Financial Statements for March 2018.  
The Committee reviewed the financial statement with no changes or issues.  

 
5. Review of the March 2018 Consumption Report. 

The Committee commented on the water demand numbers that are showing a trend similar to FY 
2016-17.  
 

6. Discussion regarding a purchase order to great Western Recreation in the amount of 

$30,307 for Lake Casitas Recreation Area Playground Surface Repairs. 
The purchase order will be moved to the Board for the consideration of approval. 
 

7. Request from Deidre Johnson for a refund of $120.57. 
Deidre Johnson was not present.  This is a bill payment issue between the tenant and landlord 
over who pays the remaining bill.  Staff is to follow policy for past due bills. 
 

8. Review request from Sharon Brown to remove Conservation Allocation fees and 

reimburse for her plumbing costs. 
Ms. Brown presented her position regarding a leak in her private water plumbing, asking for a 
relief of the $95 conservation penalty, needing a clarification of her water bill, and asking for a 
$150 payment from Casitas for repairs made to her private water service line.  The detailed 
information regarding the water bill was provided (copies) to Ms. Brown during the meeting.  The 
Committee explained that there would not be a decision from the Committee and that this request 
will be presented to the Board of Directors on May 23rd. 

 



 2 

 
 
 

9. Review request from Lou Preiezer to discuss his high usage, average his consumption 

and remove the Conservation Allocation Fee of $320.00 
Mr. Preiezer had asked staff, prior to this date, if his case could be heard on June1.  No 
discussion at this time. 
 

10. Review natural Disaster Relief request for Randy and Nora Davis to remove Conservation 

Allocation Fee of $2,505.00. 
Nora Davis presented that the private valves attached to a storage tank had been weakened by 
the Thomas Fire, causing leaks in February and March 2018.  There were no photos of the leak 
or the repair.  Director Kaiser suggested the she pursue an insurance company reimbursement.  
No action at this time, pending more information to be provided by Mrs. Davis. 
 

11. Discussion regarding the draft Manager Recommended 2018/2019 Fiscal Year Budget. 
The Committee reviewed the draft budget, noting a few changes that can be made prior to the 
finalization of the FY 2018-19 Budget.  The Committee discussed the strategy for completion of 
engineering design work for the many capital projects and the strategy for initial funding of 
projects with reserve funds. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER  
FROM: RON MERCKLING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS/RESOURCE MANAGER  
SUBJECT: WATER CONSERVATION APRIL 2018 UPDATE 
DATE: MAY 18, 2018 
 
 
During April 2018, the following activities were completed by the Water Conservation 
Department: 
 

• Facebook and Website updates 
• Worked on Landing Page development with Mustang Marketing 
• UWMP development – ongoing 
• Entire team worked on Ojai allocation assignments 
• Conducted call-em-All on April 25 for water shutoff 
• Media interviews: 

o Spoke with Perry Van Houten Recreation questions 4-5-18 
o Spoke with Kit Stolz on water usage – 4-10-18 
o Contacted by Sean Kallas, 7 ABC LA News regarding drought 4-26-18 
o  

• Managing Cross-connection control program, working on upgrades to program 
o 22 calls/emails 

• State Water Resources Control Board monthly report filed  
• Turf Removal program – Total applicants: 

o On Hold 2 
o Partial 7 
o 2 submitted 

• Continued meetings and phone calls with customers regarding allocation program 
• One water survey completed 
• Demonstration garden work in front of main office - plantings and maintenance 

direction given 
• Responded to 8 water waste reports. Some of these reports required site visits, 

phone calls, coordinating with other agencies, and mailings 
• Rebates 

o 1 Weather based controller rebate 
o 13 High Efficiency Toilets 
o 6 High Efficiency Washing Machine rebates 

• Landscape sign program – 0 new signs distributed this month 
• Water Conservation Advertising: 

o 2 ads in OVN paper and website ads 



o 1 Ojai Visitors Guide 
o 1 Facebook ad 
o Bill message 

• Attended the following meetings: 
 April 9, meeting with Julia Brownley’s Office to discuss US Forest 

Service Permits for HOBO project 
 April 10, meeting with Mustang Marketing for Landing Page 

Development 
 April 16, meeting with Mustang Marketing for Landing Page 
 April 19, AWA Symposium 
 April 24, Turf Removal Program meeting with City of Ventura 
 April 26, Ventura Rotary Presentation 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER  
FROM: RON MERCKLING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS/RESOURCE MANAGER  
SUBJECT: ACWA SPRING CONFERENCE REPORT 2018 
DATE: MAY 14, 2018  
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Attended ACWA Conference 
Dates: May 7-11, 2018.   
Location:  Sacramento, California   
 
Tuesday Attendance: 

• 7:00 am to 9:00 am Reviewed and responded to work emails. 
• 10:00 am Registered for conference 
• 11:00 am Outreach Task Force – Committee reviewed how agencies can complete forms 

when completing letters, phone calls, and meetings to their legislative representatives to 
gain points toward competing for recognition outreach awards from ACWA. Key 
outreach effort from ACWA this year is the opposition to the water tax (Budget Trailer 
Bill: Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund/Tax on Drinking Water. Casitas is a listed 
agency on ACWA’s opposition letter. 

• Lunch – ACWA 101 – Met with ACWA staff (Brandon Ida) and listened ACWA staff 
presentations on ACWA’s committees, ACWA JPIA benefits, and other member 
benefits. 

• 1:30 pm to 3:30 pm attended Sexual Harassment Prevention for Board Members and 
Managers class. 

 
Wednesday Attendance: 

• 8:00 am to 9:45 am - Attended Opening Breakfast, Keynote presentation by Randy 
Record, focused on Metropolitan Water District’s Board of Directors historic vote on 
April 10, to support the Governor’s California WaterFix.   

• 10:00 am to 11:30 am - Attended Water Industry Trends Program, “Should California 
Improve Water Supply and Runoff Forcasts? The Benefits of NASA’s Airborne Snow 
Observatory. When questions, Michael Anderson, State Climatologist was indecisive on 
any future pattern that would continue the misses of atmospheric rivers from Santa 
Barbara and Ventura County. 

• 11:45 am to 1:45 pm – Attended Luncheon – Representative from U.S. Department of 
Interior addressed priorities for the Department in 2018, which included immigration 
reform, infrastructure investment, and streamlining regulations. 



• 2:00 pm to 3:15 pm – Communications Committee Program – Rain or Shine: Shifting 
Conservation Messages for the New Norm – Speakers discussed water conservation 
campaigns and water efficiencies campaigns. Some disagreement about the negativity of 
water conservation messaging with the public. Some made the argument that long term 
messaging on sustainability was more acceptable with Water Efficiency campaigns and 
drought messaging focused on water conservation.  

• 3:30 pm to 4:45 pm – Exhibitor Case Study – Reinventing the Backflow Management 
Process for Efficiency Gains & Cost Savings (Nexgen Utility Management, Inc.) 
This program focused on a software program that can receive daily information from any 
financial accounting program that could offer web portal capability to receive tester 
information and automatically generate testing letters and reminder letters. The speakers 
also discussed an option to charge testers $5 to $10 per test result turned in, this would 
generate $5,000 to $10,000 in annual funding to assist Casitas in paying for its program, 
which is mandated by the State. 

 
Thursday Attendance: 

• 8:00 am to 9:15 am - Attended Connections Continental Breakfast in the Exhibitor Hall.  
• 9:30 am to 11:45 am – Attended Ethics Training: Conduct and Ethics for Water Agency 

Officials: A Primer on AB 1234. 
• 11:45 am to 1:45 pm – General Luncheon – A variety of Awards presented. Keynote 

speaker was to be Karla Nemeth, but Governor Brown attended in her place. He 
advocated in favor of the water tax. 

• 2 pm to 3:15 pm – Attended Federal Issues Form – Federal Updates from the Bureau of 
Reclamation and Army Corp. Additional funding anticipated for water infrastructure 
projects in California later this year. 

• 7 pm to 9 pm – Attended Dinner event. Networked with ACWA staff and Western 
Municipal Water District staff on public outreach and conservation. 

 
Friday Attendance: 

• 8:30 am to 10:00 am Attended Hans Doe Breakfast. John Ashford, chairman and CEO of 
the Hawthorn Group, L.C. Predicted that the House is likely to switch parties in 
November but the Senate is not likely to switch. Talked in detail about the November 
election. 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
1416 NINTH STREET, P.O. BOX 942836 
SACRAMENTO, CA  94236-0001 
(916) 653-5791 
 

 
 
May 16, 2018      

         
Ron Merckling 
Public Affairs/Resource Manager 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1044 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, California 93022 
 
RE:  Urban Water Management Plan Requirements Addressed 
 
Dear Mr. Merckling: 
 
The Department of Water Resources (DWR) has reviewed the Casitas Municipal Water 
District’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) received on July 1, 2016. The 
California Water Code (CWC) directs DWR to report to the legislature once every five years 
on the status of submitted UWMPs.  In meeting this legislative reporting requirement, DWR 
reviews all submitted UWMPs.  
 
DWR’s review of the Casitas Municipal Water District’s 2015 plan has found that the UWMP 
addresses the requirements of the CWC.  DWR’s review of plans is limited to assessing 
whether suppliers have addressed the required legislative elements.  In its review, DWR does 
not evaluate or analyze the supplier’s UWMP data, projections, or water management 
strategies.  This letter acknowledges that the Casitas Municipal Water District’s 2015 UWMP 
addresses the CWC requirements.  The results of the review will be provided to DWR’s 
Financial Assistance Branch.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the review of the UWMP or urban water management 
planning, please call Gwen Huff at 916-651-9672. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Vicki Lake 
Unit Chief 
Urban Water Use Efficiency 
(916) 651-0740 
 
Electronic cc:  
 Brad Milner 
  
 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

05/15/18

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Farmer MAC 31315PYF0 5/2/2028 $511,849 $479,255 2.925% 11/20/2017 2.39% 3587

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGZW8 10/25/2024 $833,918 $775,039 2.014% 10/25/2016 3.87% 2320

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $897,877 $822,379 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.10% 2848

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $852,007 $807,542 2.790% 3/28/2016 4.03% 2814

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,013,311 $953,800 3.000% 3/24/2016 4.76% 3143

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGWD 9/29/2027 $694,629 $633,513 2.354% 11/17/2016 3.16% 3374

*TB Farmer MAC 3133EEPH7 2/12/2029 $480,166 $448,799 2.710% 11/20/2017 2.24% 3867

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A3DL 9/8/2023 $1,567,878 $1,455,720 1.486% 10/13/2016 7.26% 1913

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,357,210 $1,339,308 1.625% 10/3/2012 6.68% 389

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN 12/10/2021 $530,829 $500,795 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.50% 1285

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $760,599 $702,502 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.50% 2548

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $461,240 $422,951 1.203% 7/14/2016 2.11% 1913

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5VW6 7/10/2025 $1,022,243 $970,910 2.360% 5/10/2017 4.84% 2575

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130AIXJ2 6/14/2024 $920,183 $837,251 2.875% 8/2/2016 4.18% 2189

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF 6/11/2021 $629,494 $605,853 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.02% 1106

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB 1/13/2022 $673,311 $653,349 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.26% 1318

*TB Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $789,565 $737,441 1.721% 5/1/2016 3.68% 2146

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR 9/6/2024 $1,467,077 $1,361,283 2.625% 5/25/2016 6.79% 2271

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0K3 4/24/2026 $2,526,886 $2,318,575 2.125% 5/25/2016 11.57% 2859

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE1 7/15/2018 $1,156,860 $1,162,648 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.80% 60

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF 1/15/2020 $1,158,635 $1,170,038 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.84% 600

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE 11/15/2023 $767,960 $759,622 2.750% 12/13/2013 3.79% 1980

Accrued Interest $124,914

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $21,073,728 $20,043,489 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $452 $452 1.51% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,888 $2,888 1.39% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $21,077,068 $20,046,829 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $21,079,953 $20,063,651

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $21,189,605 $20,822,021

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $3,681,752 $3,681,752

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $4 $4 0.19%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $24,758,824 $23,728,585

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $25,364,128 $24,996,545

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	5-23-18 Agenda
	5-09-18 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	May 9, 2018

	award-memo_IFB 120_Teapot Playground Resurfacing (1)
	Bills
	Brown Relief request 05 18 2018
	SGPWA Agreement Memo 05 18 2018
	MEMORANDUM

	Ventura Casitas SGPWA Exchange Agreement Signed by SGPWA May 2018
	CEQA Resolution 05 18 2018
	PrelimAssessment for Exchange 05 16 2018
	Notice of Exemption for Exchange 05 16 2018
	On-Call Engineering Board Memo
	Agreement_on call consultants
	BM_Architect_Proposal Acceptance
	accept cultural_resources proposal_Acceptance (1)
	Budget - Revenue Expense Capital 2018-2019 (1)
	Budget - Revenue 2018-2019
	Budget - 2018-2019
	Budget - Proposed Capital Projects 2018 - 2019
	Budget - Capital Projects 2018-2019 
	Budget - 10 Year Capital Plan 2018 - 2019
	Reso budget hearing 2018 2019
	Reso cancelling meeting
	LAFCo Ballot
	Apr2018 monthly lake status (1)
	Executive Minutes 05 11 2018
	Fin Minutes 05 18 2018
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Water Conservation April 2018 Update
	ACWA Spring Conference Report 2018
	Requirements Addressed Ltr - Casitas Municipal Water District (1)
	DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

	Investment Report 05-15-18

